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SECRET

‘ MINISTRY OF DEFENCE
A \A(- MAIN BUILDING WHITEHALL LONDON SW1
WL N
Telephone 01383X20x2 218 211 1/3

31st July 1986

Ueo it

from the Secretary of State for Trade and Industry to the
Secretary of State for Defence, proposing an E(A) discussion of
the Westland problem in September.

My Secretary of State and the Trade and Industry Secretary
have now met to consider the proposals in Mr Channon's letter.

Mr Younger sees the advantages of E(A) discussion in September,
and if this course commends itself to the Prime Minister, a
paper on the options will be prepared by the officials of the
Departments accordingly. Mr Younger also agrees a prior meeting
with Sir John Cuckney, as Mr Channon has proposed.

Mr Younger and Mr Channon considered in particular the
problem of Sea King procurement, on which they had exchanged
views in letters of 1lst July and 17th July. Defence plans
currently provide for eight Sea Kings, as against the figure of
up to fifteen which Westland knows was at one time in mind. The
firm is likely to continue to press for a decision. To order
eight now will inevitably raise doubts about the remainder of
the fifteen; on the other hand, to delay any order, pending E(A)
discussion, would raise doubts about the order as a whole. The
Defence Secretary therefore proposes to order the eight;
questions about the rest will be answered on the lines that the
requirement for any further Sea Kings was still being
considered. The Defence Secretary believes the approach to the
firm should be low-key because of the sensitivities; the order
will therefore be agreed at a meeting between officials and the
firm, to carry forward discussion of the details of the Westland
approach.

Finally, I owe you a reply to your letter of 7th July about
the cost of redundancies and unemployment benefit as a result of
the procurement of only eight Sea Kings. On very broad
assumptions about earnings figures and the numbers of the
workforce who would need to be laid off, our assessment is that

Charles Powell Esqg
No 10 Downing Street

SECRET
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the cost of benefit and the loss of revenue at 1985/86 prices
might amount to around £1 million a year for three years. This
assumes about one hundred and fifty redundancies, direct and
indirect. The saving from not ordering seven Sea Kings would be
about £28 million. These figures are very tentative in the
absence of any consultation with the firm: but the general
point that the cost of redundancies in this case is unlikely to
be a substantial offset to savings is likely to be valid.

I am sending copies of this letter to the Private
Secretaries to the Secretary of State for Trade and Industry,
the Chancellor of the Exchequer, the Lord President, the
Chancellor of the Duchy of Lancaster and Sir Robert Armstrong.

(J F HOWE)

SECRET
2



http://www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/legal/copyright.htm



http://www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/legal/copyright.htm

Tam Dalyell Esq MP
House of Commons
London SW1A OAA 31st July 1986

("_7

[ o .

v

Thank you for your letter of 27 July.

My part in the institution of Sir Robert Armstrong's
inquiry has been described in the Prime Minister's statements
last January, in my own answers to Parliamentary Questions,
and in Sir Robert Armstrong's evidence to the Select Committee

on Defence.

On the matter of the immunity, I answered a question by

Edward Gardner on 24 July.

I have nothing further to add on these matters, save that
I do not accept that the Law Officers have been misused by the

Frime Minister.
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ROYAL COURTS OF JUSTICE
LONDON, WC2A 2LL

01-405 7641 Extn

The Rt. Hon. Dr John Gilbert MP.
House of Commons
London SW1A OAA. 31 July 1986

PLE T

Thank you for your letter of 29 July.

As 1 said in my answer to Edward Gardner, at the time when I granted
immunity to the official concerned, while I had reason to believe that the
disclosure had been made by the official concerned and that the official
concerned had acted in complete good faith, I was not aware of the full
circumstances. I have nothing to add to that answer.

Ot

sy
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10 DOWNING STREET

From the Principal Private Secretary

SIR ROBERT ARMSTRONG

Thank you for your minute of 29 July about the handling of
the response to the Defence Select Committee's reports about
Westland.

I have not shown your minute to the Prime Minister, but I
think that the arrangements described in your minute for
preparing the responses to the two reports are on the right
lines.

I strongly agree that the response to the Select Committee's
report on Government decision-making should be constructed so
as to avoid retelling the story of events discussed in the
Select Committee's report. Clearly it is essential to avoid
another round of evidence taking and reports. This means,
I think, that the responses should avoid giving further
information of the events of last January.

None of this need prevent a disquisition on the question of
accountability and the role of civil servants in relation to
Select Committees, etc. But such material should be put in
general terms and not related to the particular circumstances
of the Defence Committee's inquiry. I agree, too, that at
this stage two separate responses should be prepared, though
in the event, it may be decided to brigade them into one
Government response to the two reports. It is possible that

the response may also have to cover the outstanding report of

CONFIDENTIAL

ENL
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the Select Committee on Trade and Industry. Murdo Maclean is
finding out its publication date. It would clearly be highly
convenient if the Government's response to that document
could be published at the same time as the responses to the

Defence Select Committee's two reports.

I hope that drafts of the responses can be available with us
by, say, about the middle of September. You are certainly
right in wanting their publication to be kept clear of Party
Conferences.

Finally some thoughts on the Parliamentary handling of the
report. One possibility is for the Government's response to
be published in one document which, while not brushing aside
the Government decision-making aspects, concentrates on
policies of helicopter procurement and industrial aspects.
This response would be presented to Parliament by the
Secretaries of State for Defence and Trade and Industry,
though it may prove impossible to avoid adding the Prime
Minister's name. If a debate is inevitable, there would be
much to be said for the Government offeriﬁg time in the
spill-over period. The Secretary of State for Defence would
open the debate and speak mainly about helicopter
procurement, making some passing references to the comments
on Government decision-making aspects. A Trade and Industry
Minister could wind. The business managers will, no doubt,

be advising on all this in due course.

I am sending copies of this minute to the Private Secretaries
to the Lord President, Lord Privy Seal and Chief Whip.

N.L.u.

N.L. WICKS
31 July 1986

CONFIDENTIAL
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10 DOWNING STREET

From the Principal Private Secretary 31 July 1986
uly

I have shown the Prime Minister your letters of 29 and
30 July about letters which the Attorney has received from
Dr. Gilbert and Mr. Dalyell. The Prime Minister has also
seen Sir Robert Armstrong's letter to you of 30 July in
which he puts forward some revised draft replies to
Dr. Gilbert and Mr. Dalyell.

The Prime Minister has said that she agrees with the
approach in Sir Robert's letter.

I am sending a copy of this letter to Sir Robert
Armstrong.

N. L. Wicks

Miss J. L. Wheldon,
Attorney General's Office.
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PRIME MINISTER

John Gilbert (Flag A) and Tam Dalyell (Flag B) have both
written to the Attorney to ask him questions about his role in
the Inquiry into the circumstances of the disclosure of the
Solicitor General's letter. John Gilbert asked whether the
Attorney could say whether Ministerial approval had been given
for the disclosure of the letter when he granted immunity to

Miss Bowe. Mr. Dalyell asks questions in a similar vein.

The Attorney wants to reply to Dr. Gilbert that he did not
know of any Ministerial approval for disclosure when he
granted immunity. He wants to reply in similar terms to Mr.
Dalyell's question on this point, but to refuse to answer his

other questions.

I am sure the Attorney goes too far. The more answers

volunteered, the more the questions that will be asked. Sir

e ————————————

Robert Armstrong takes the same view in his letter immediately

e,

below.
—

Shall I tell the Attorney that you agree with Sir Robert's

approach? pd‘//
= T

(The Attorney may raise this matter at his meeting with you on

another matter tomorrow morning.)

N.LM.

NLW

30 July, 1986.

JD3APA
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70 WHITEHALL, LONDON SWIA 2AS
01-233 8319

From the Secretazy qf the Cabinet and Head of the Home Civil Service

Sir Robert Armstrong GCB cvo

Ref. A086/2201 30 July 1986

Thank you for your letters of 29 and 30 July, enclosing
copies of letters which the Attorney General has received
from Dr Gilbert and Mr Tam Dalyell and the draft replies
proposed.

On the draft reply to Dr Gilbert, I think that the
Attorney General would be best advised not to go beyond the
full and comprehensive answer which he has given to Mr Edward
Gardner. To do so would invite further questions to the
Attorney General not oniy on this but on other aspects of the
Westland affair.

As to the reply to Mr Dalyell, I suggest that the
Attorney General could deal with the first point in
Mr Dalyell's letter by reference to the Prime Minister's
statements, his own answers to Parliamentary Questions, and
the answers which I gave to the Select Committee on Defence
when I gave evidence on 5 February (QQ 1093-1099).

I attach revised draft repiies to Dr Gilbert and
Mr Dalyell accordingly; I should of course be very happy to
discuss the drafts with you or the Attorney General, should
you or he so wish.

I am sending a copy of this letter and the revised
drafts to Nigel Wicks.

X .
Sy 31 wcavéy
/QO/ be f’lbwdbw
Miss J L Wheldon /}
Legal Secretary

Attorney General's Chambers
Law Officers' Department
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DRAFT LETTER FROM THE ATTORNEY GENERAL TO
TAM DALYELL ESQ MP

Thank you for your letter of 27 July.

My part in the institution of
Sir Robert Armstrong's inquiry has been
described in the Prime Minister's statements

last January, 1n my own answers to

Parliamentary Questions, and in Sir Robert

Armstrong's evidence to the Select

Committee on Defence on 5 February.

On: the matter ot ‘the immun ity S
answered a question by Edward Gardner on

24 July.

I have nothing further to add on these
matters, save that I do not accept that the
Law Officers have been misused by the Prime

Minister.
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DRAFT LETTER FROM THE ATTORNEY GENERAL TO
THE RT HON DR JOHN GILBERT MP

Thank you ifeor.-your letterjot $Z9dnlyzs

As 1 said in my answer to Edward
Gardner, at the time when I granted
immunity to the official concerned, while
had reason to believe that the disclosure
had been made by the official concerned and
that the official concerned had acted in
complete good faith, I was not aware of the
full circumstances. I have nothing to add

to that answer.
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01-405 XsaXpixx  936:6229
ATTORNEY GENERAL’S CHAMBERS
Communications on this subject should

be addressed to LAW OFFICERS’ DEPARTMENT
The Legal Secretary
Attorney General’s Chambers ROYAL COURTS OF JUSTICE

LONDON, W.C.2

Sir Robert Armstrong GCB CVO

Secretary of the Cabinet

Cabinet Office 30 July, 1986
70 Whitehall

London SW1

/9“’ ¢ '((/Lt/v,

| enclose a copy of another letter on Westland - this
time from Tam Dalyell - and a copy of a draft reply. Again,

| should be grateful for any comments which you or

Nigel Wicks, to whom | am copying this letter and enclosure.

may have.

MISS J L WHELDON
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DRA FT LETTER TO TAM DALYELL MP

Thank you for your letter of 27 July.
| have, | believe, already made my position in
this matter sufficiently clear in the answers which |

have given to Parliamentary questions and, in particular,

in my reply to Edward Gardner of 24 July. But to

by Lo

avoid any possible misunderstanding | have confirme ﬂto

John Gilbert that | did not, at the time | granted

immunity to the official who disclosed the Solicitor General's
letter, know that Ministerial approval had been given for

that disclosure. | do not believe that there is anything
which | can usefully add in response to the questions

in your letter, other than to say that | do not of course
accept your suggestion that the Law Officers have been

misused by the Prime Minister.
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L0148 eapeRex  936:6229 ()

_~ ATTORNEY GENERAL’S CHAMBERS

& jications on this subject should o

be(.ssed to LAW OFFICERS’ DEPARTMENT

The Legal Secretary

Attorney General’s Chambers ROYAL COURTS OF JUSTICE
LONDON, W.C.2

Sir Robert Armstrong GCB CVO
Secretary of the Cabinet
Cabinet Office

70 Whitehall 29 July, 1986
London SW1

| enclose a copy of a letter which the Attorney
General has received from Dr. Gilbert and a copy of
his proposed reply. He wishes to keep the reply as
short as possible. Perhaps you would let me know if
you have any difficulty with the draft.

| am copying this letter and enclosure
to Nigel Wicks.

MISS J L WHELDON
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The Rt Hon Dr John Gilbert, MP HOUSE OF COMMONS Switchboard 01-219 3000
LONDON SWIA OAA Secretary  01-219 6209

25th July 1986

Rt Hon Sir Michael Havers QC MP
Attorney General s Chambers
Royal Courts of Justice

The Strand

LONDON WC2A 2LL

TAZ.Q~_, L=l 0

First of all let me thank you for letting me have a
copy of Edward Gardner’'s question in time for the
debate yesterday. You may have seen that I quoted it
and your answer in full and commented at some length on
your answer.

As I am sure you would wish no ambiguity to attach to
your position, perhaps you would be kind enough to let
me know whether in fact,at the time that you authorised
the granting of immunity to Miss Bowe, you were aware
that ministerial approval had been given for the public
disclosure of the letter from the Solicitor-General to
the then Secretary of State for Defence, in part or in
whole.



http://www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/legal/copyright.htm

DRAFT LETTER FROM ATTORNEY GENERAL TO:-
The Rt Hon Dr John Gilbert MP

House of Commons
London SWtA OAA

July, 1986

Thank you for your letter of 29 July. The answer to

your question is no,
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CONFIDENTIAL
(

LZ/
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»T’
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M«A.Jﬁ
Ref. A086/2184 R7w . pahas 4
MR WICKS /étm &a N//(} é

The Government's Response to the Reports of the Select ﬁJZJQ)
Committee on Defence about Westland plc

’::: S"?

I have discussed the handling of the response with the Permanent

Secretaries to the Ministry of Defence and the Department of Trade
and Industry.

2 The background to this is that the problems of Westland plc are
not going to diminish in the coming months, particularly if the
Ministry of Defence (as seems likely) are obliged to reduce their
orders for Sea King Helicopters. The Select Committee are therefore
likely to want to come back to the defence and industrial implications

of Westland plc in the coming months.

o The response to the Select Committee's report on the defence
implications will have to be prepared with these considerations in mind.

4. The response to the report on the Government's decision-making
will, I think, need to be a different sort of document. I hope that

it will be possible so to construct it as to avoid retelling the

story of the events discussed in the Select Committee's report: all
concerned will want to minimise the risks of another round of evidence-
taking and reports. It will need to deal further with the questions

of accountability and of the role of civil servants in relation to

Select Committees (@and vice versa).

5 With these considerations in mind we have agreed to work on the
preparation of two separate responses to the two Select Committee
reports. The Ministry of Defence will take primary responsibility,
in consultation with the Department of Trade and Industry, for

preparing the response on défence implications; the Cabinet Office,

in consultation with the other Departments concerned, will take primary
responsibility for the preparation of a response on decision-making.
1

CONFIDENTIAL
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i We aim to prepare drafts and discuss them among ourselves
early in September, with a view to getting drafts to the Ministers
concerned in time for publication not later than the end of
September. I am conscious of the fact that there will be

something to be said for publishing the responses either a little
earlier than that - so as to keep them clear of party conferences -
or a little later than that, so thatithe responses do . not appear
until after the party conferences of the opposition parties.

i I think that the response on the defence implications should
be presented to Parliament by the Secretary of State for Defence.
If the responseiion decision-taking is separate, I fear that it will
be difficult to avoid the conclusion that it should be presented
by the Prime Minister, though it could perhaps be presented by

the Prime Minister and the two Secretaries of State jointly.

8. The Lord Privy Seal and the Chief Whip will no doubt have
their own views on the arrangements for debating the response.
I would judge that a debate would be inevitable; and that the
Government should therefore aim to have one debate for the
responses to both reports, and to have it during the spill-over

rather than in a new Session.

L I am sending copies of this minute to the Private Secretaries
to the Lord President, the Lord Privy Seal and the Chief Whip.

N

ROBERT ARMSTRONG

29 July 1986

2
CONFIDENTIAL
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10 DOWNING STREET
LONDON SWI1A 2AA
From the Private Secretary 28 July 1986

QDMM M Doddeﬂk )

I am writing on behalf of the Prime
Minister to acknowledge receipt of your letter
dated 24 July concerning the Select Committee
Report on Westland.

Timothy Flesher

Tam Dalyell, Esq., M.P.
S ———
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DEPARTMENT OF TRADE AND INDUSTRY ,
1-19 VICTORIA STREET

LONDON SWIH OET
Telephone (Direct dialling) 01-215) 542 2
G'rN 2!5) trssrnasennranaareain
(Switchboard) 01-215 7877

Secretary of State for Trade and Industry .

SECRET

25 guly 1986

The Rt Hon George Younger MP ¢ .
Secretary of State for Defence N J\ i O
Ministry of Defence Lo, Vvv%VVr

Main Building

Whitehall (\L \ \ro
LONDON \ ({)‘W bl
SW1

v o E(R) oo

b "’ waslh }'{Q@Mw o~
/)a C@ Mo Clenrm X M&WW\
i x W o Y \,&WM/ “2@\»-6&

(A LA f 3 -y ! Q‘\‘\k Q\_\‘W v}xa F u K

Inmyidetterdof 17 duly’, T suggested tHat $E should have a {\A{)
discussion of the position of Westland following the presentation b
the company had made to our officials. As you will know, Westland{b@LB ,
have now written setting out a number of areas in which they seek = 54—+ |
decisions from Government in order to help them to implement their }3/¥'
strategy. The purpose of this letter is to suggest how we should

take forward our consideration of this matter.

<y

\ e

For the benefit of colleaguesJI should first outline the position
of Westland's helicopter busifdess as the company have presented it
to us. The capital reconstruction approved by shareholders in
February has secured the financial position of the company, but the
Helicopter Division still faces a shortage of orders. Westland
believe their major future helicopter projects provide the basis
for a viable helicopter operation from the mid-1990s onwards, but
in the short-term the_company does not have enough orders to
sustain its helicopter business at a viable level. Although the
licence from Sikorsky to sell Black Hawk has increased the
opportunities Westland have to fill their workload gap through
exports, Westland still need orders for some 60 additional
helicopters, over and above prospects so far identified, to produce
an adequate workload for the years 1989 to 19937, Against this
background Westland have sought various Government measures

500

BO
aﬁDOFﬂNEE
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including direct MoD orders for new helicopters; a range of
actions on existing MoD business designed both to provide more work
for Westland and to benefit the company's export efforts; and

improved export support in the fields of credit cover, finance and
licensing.

We should not minimise the potential seriousness of the situation
which clearly also has important political implications. Westland
have not spelt out precisely what actions they might take, or on
what timescale, if they are unable to fill the worklocad gap, but at
the extreme, they could conclude that they should substantially
withdraw from the helicopter business - they believe the company
could have a profitable future through concentrating on the
expansion of its technologies business. Even if their action fell
short of this extreme step, substantial redundancies and plant
closures would be likely.

The matters raised by Westland undoubtedly raise major problems for
the Government. I believe we must address the underlying point
that in planning their strategy Westland need a clear understanding
of the Government's requirements. As long ago as October 1984 the
then Chairman of Westland said the company needed g_gggh_gggg,
precise view of the Government's intentions, which was crucial to

their management, industrial planning and marketing. That remains
the position. i B —

——

I hope you will agree that there should be an opportunity for a
collective discussion before a formal response is made to Westland.
1 understand our officials are already working on a review of the
areas identified by Westland. I suggest they should be asked to
produce a statement of the options by the end of August, which
could provide a basis for a discusszion in E(A) in the early part of
September. In the meantime I suggest that you and I should have a
preliminary discussion, and might also see Sir John Cuckney to
explain the timescale on which we intend to handle thils matter, and
to seek more specific information from him on the consequences for
Westland if increased helicopter business in the years 1989 to 1992
cannot be obtained.

I am sending copies of this letter to the Prime Minister, the other
members of E(A), and to Sir Robert Armstrong.

\
s

) 17
i S

JPSBIR e A
v
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10 DOWNING STREET

From the Principal Private Secretary

SIR ROBERT ARMSTRONG

The Government's Response to the Reports of the Select

Committee on Defence and on Westland

We discussed briefly last week the handling of the
Government's response to these two reports. You agreed to
arrange for the relevant Departments to put in hand the
arrangements for the drafting of the Government's responses
to both reports. Simply for planning purposes, Departments
should work on the assumption of publication of response(s)
by the end of September.

I should also be glad if you, in consultation with the
Business Managers, could let the Prime Minister have advice,
say at the end of August, on the tactics for handling the
Government's response in Parliament. Your advice should
include the following issues: should there be one White Paper
combining into one document the Government's response to the
two reports or two separate White Papers; which Ministers
should present the response to Parliament; when should this
be done; should the Government pre-empt Opposition demands
for a debate by giving time for one debate (presumably on the
response to both reports at the same time) and if so, when;
who should speak in the debate?

I am sending a copy of this minute to the Private Secretaries
of the Lord President, Lord Privy Seal and Chief Whip.

N.L.W-

N.L. WICKS
28 July 1986

CONFIDENTIAL
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Failure to give a Lead

The Select Committee have said that the Head
of the Home Civil Service failed to give a lead in
this case. I cannot accept that view. He has
stated on the record, in evidence to the Select
Committee which has been reported and broadcast,
that it would be much better not to have disclosed

the information in the way in which it was

disclosed. He issued a memorandum of guidance in

February last year on the duties and
responsibilities of civil servants in relation to
Ministers, The Treasury and Civil Service
Committee have accepted the validity of those
principles and they have been reaffirmed by the
Government in the response to the Treasury and
Civil Service Committee which was published
yesterday. Following discussion with My Rt Hon and
Learned Friend the Attorney General it was the Head
of the Home Civil Service who proposed that there
should be an inquiry. He conducted that inguiry
himself, with assistance from a colleague from the
cabinet Office (Management and Personnel Office),
and reported fully to the Prime Minister and the
Attorney General on the disclosure and the

circumstances in which it came to be made. He took

DUTAAY
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the view, in my judgment rightly, that it would not

pbe fair or reasonable to expect the officials who
had given an account of their role to him and
co-operated fully in his inquiry to submit to a
second round of detailed guestioning of the sort
that would have peen involved in giving evidence to
the Select committee. He offered himself to give
evidence to the gelect Committe, and answered their
guestions fully and fairly at two sessions lasting
altogether for nearly five hours. Indeed, the
Select Committee have relied extensively on his
evidence in producing their own Report. Far from
that being a failure of leadership, it demonstrates
the exercise of leadership with a high degree of

responsibility and integrity.
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WESTLAND

e F

General Line to Take

The Government will, of course, respond to these
reports in due course. I should, however, like to

make two things clear straight away.

First, my Rt. Hon. Friend the Secretary of State for
Trade and Industry and I have total confidence in
our officials referred to in the Report. As the
House will be aware, those responsible for decisions

on disciplinary action have already concluded that
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there was no case for such action in these

instances.

Second, I do not accept the Committee's comments on

the role of the Head of the Home Civil Service. He

continues to have the Government's total

confidence.

SLHAMN
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ADJOURNMENT DEBATE: MINISTER'S RESPONSE

The Hon Gentleman is well known in the House and outside for his

persistence and determination in pursuing issues. We respect him

for that. But I have to let him into a secret. He does
sometimes get so obsessed with an issue that he loses his balance
and objectivity. One obsession he has is that there is a
continual conspiracy in Government against the nation. This
impression that he gives that he lives in a world of illusions

does very often diminish the credibility of his case.

Indeed be is notorious at raising lssues which fascinate a part
of Westminster and the Press but which bore the rest of the

country stiff,

It is also very noticeable that the Hon Gentleman continues not
to notice many of the facts given to the House when it suits him

to do s0.



http://www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/legal/copyright.htm

The Third and Fourth Reports from the Defence Committee on
Westland were received by the Government only yesterday. These
reports are based on lengthy inquiries that the Committee has
conducted and the Government will naturally be studying them
carefully before responding to Parliament in due course. I note
that the Rt Hon Gentleman the Member for Islooin recognised

yesterday the need for the Government to have time to reply.

In responding to the points that the Hon Member has made, I do
not propose to go over the whole of the series of events in
detail. My Rt Hon Friend the Prime Minister gave full accounts
to the House on 23 and 27 January and has answered many questions
in the House since then. Sir Robert Armstrong gave extensive and
detailed evidence to the Committee on two occasions; and my Rt
Hon and Learned Friend the Attorney-General has answered numerous
questions in the House concerning his position and that of my Rt

Hon and Learned Friend the Solicitor-General.

But there are a number of points that the Hon Member has insisted

on making in spite of the information already made available and

I propose to deal briefly with a few of these and to raise

related issues.
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Prime Minister's Involvement

He has continued to allege that the disclosure of the
Solicitor-General's letter was made in some way with the Prime

Minister's authority. The Committee's report states very clearly

in paragraph 183 that '"The Prime Minister stated that she had no

knowledge on 6 January of what was taking place. We accept
this"., . I 'hope: that in the light of that clear conclusion from
the Committee we shall hear no more from the Hon Member on this

matter.
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Attorney-General

He has repeated also the allegation that he made earlier
concerning the Attorney-General, suggesting that the Attorney
knew when he instituted the inquiry that the disclosure had been
authorised by the then Secretary of State for Trade and Industry.
I would refer the House to the reply given by the
Attorney-General yesterday which he made the position abundantly

clear. Heisaid:

"The Select Committee state that if, when I authorised
an offer of immunity from prosecution to one of the
officials concerned in the Head of the Home Civil
Service's inquiry into the circumstances of the
disclosure of the Solicitor General's letter of 6
January, I was able at that stage to say taht under no
circumstances would I prosecute the official concerned,
I must have known, and must have learned from the Head
of the Home Civil Service, that the disclosure had been

authorised.

I wish to make it absolutely clear that, at the time
when I advised that an inquiry be instituted, I did not
know by whom the disclosure had been made or that it
had been authorised by the then Secretary of State for

Trade and Industry if at all.

At the time when I granted imunity to the official
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concerned, while I had reason to believe that the
disclosure had been made by the official concerned, and
that the official concerned had acted in complete good
faith, I was not aware of the full circumstances. It
was important that the inquiry should discover as fully
as possible the circumstances in which the disclosure
came to be made, and should provide those concerned
with the opportunity of giving their accounts of their
part in the affair. It was clear that the testimony of
the official in question would be vital to the inquiry,
and I judged it right that possible impediment to full
co-operation in the inquiry should be removed. 1 was
and am satisfied that that in no way interefered with

the course of justice: the facts as disclosed in the

inquiry confirmed my judgement that there would have

been no question of proceeding against the official

concerned.

As the Select Committee recognise, I was not told of
the direct involvement of the then Secretary of State

for Trade and Industry until 2 January."
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Individual Civil Servants/Discipline

I turn now to the allegation the Hon Member has made concerning
individual civil servants. Once again I would refer Hon Members
to what my Rt Hon Friend the Prime Minister stated in the House

yesterday on this matter.

"First, my Rt Hon Friend the Secretary of State for
Trade and Industry and I have total confidence in our
officials referred to in the report. As the House will
be aware, those responsibible for deciding on
disciplinary action have already concluded that there

Wasno case fersuch ' actions

Second, I do not accept the Committee's comments on the
role of thetHeadiof" the Home Civil! Servicei He
continues to enjoy the Government's total confidence.
He is a very distinguished public servant, who has

of both

performed great service to Governments ame& parties.'

The Select Committee said that they find extraordinary the fact
that no disciplinary action was taken against any of the
officials concerned in the disclosure of the Solicitor General's
letter. My Rt Hon Friend the Prime Minister has already
expressed to her House, in her speech on 27 January, her regret
at the manner in which the disclosure was made. As the Head of
the Home Civil Service has said in his evidence to the Selection

Committee, clearly things were done in this affair which would
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have been better done differently, and in that sense people made
wrong judgements. The question is whether those errors of

judgement were such as to call for disciplinary action. As my Rt

A
Hon Friend aﬁg Prime Minister made clear yesterday, those

responsible for decisions about disciplinary action concluded
that ther was no case for such action in these instances. As the
Committe's report acknowledges, the disclosure was made with the
authority of the then Secretary of State for Trade and Industry.
Indeed the House will need little reminding that my Rt Hon and
Learned Friend the Member for Richmond, Yorks in his statement to
this House on 27 January accepted full responsibility for the
fact and form of the disclosure. He went on to make clear that

ofEficiralis) acted injaccordancetwiith' hi s wisheg "and dnstructionst
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Accountability

This was a clear-demonstration of the principle-of Ministerial

—

! accountability. The overriding importance of that principle has
W

been stressed in the Government Response to the Seventh Report
from the Treasury and Civil Service Committee, which my Rt Hon
Friend the Prime Minister presented to the House yesterday. The
Government had no hesitation in reaffirming the principle that
Ministers are responsible and accountable for the actions of

their eivil servants.

This issue has been addressed at some length in the Government
Response to the Seventh Report of the Treasury and Civil Service

Committee. This set out the position in the following way:

"Any attempt to make civil servants directly
accountable to Parliament, other than the strictly
defined ..case of the Accounpting Officers's
responsibility, would be difficult to reconcile with
Ministers' responsibility for their departments and

civil servants' duty to their Ministers.

+ilib ude Lupricacioils Lor tne position of civil
servants in relation to Select Committees generally and
the Departmental Select Committees in particular.

These Committees were established to examine the
expenditure, administration and policy of government
departments, and the conventions accepted as applying

to the exercise of their powers are set out
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comprehensively in the First Report from the House of

Commons Select Committee on Procedure and the
memorandum to that Committee by the Clerk of the House.
The report and the memorandum recognised that civil
servants who give evidence to Select Committees do so
on behalf of their Ministers; that there are certain
matters on which they cannot answer questions (notably,
as the Committee's own report states, on policy matters
- which are for Ministers - and on advice given to
Ministers); and that, as the Procedure Committee's

report stated:

"it would not, however, be appropriate for
the House to seek directly or theeugh its
Committees to enforce its rights to secure
information from the Executive at a level
below that of the ministerial head of
department concerned (normally a Cabinet
Minister), since such a practice would tend
to undermine rather than strengthen the

accountability of Ministers to the House";

Clerk of' the House stated:

"it would certainly appear more in accordance
with Ministerial accountability to the House
that Ministers should accept responsibility
for the conduct of their officials, and that

the House should proceed against Ministers'.

It is not, in the Government's view, generally in
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accordance with those conventi ons, or with the
underlying principles of ministerial accountability,
that Select Committees should criticise individual
civil servants who are, for the reasons already
explained, unable to speak freely in their own

defence."

The very serious problems arising from attempts by Select
Committees to hold civil servants accountable to them are I
believe amply demonstrated in the efforts of the Defence

Committee to extend its inquiry beyond questions of departmental

policy and execution into the performance and conduct of

individual officials. I sincerely trust therefore that in the
next session of this Parliament we shall see Select Committees
return to the principles which have hitherto been accepted as the

basis on which officials give evidence to Select Committees.
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Bernard Ingham and Sir Robert Armstrong

The Hon Member singled out for particular criticism the Head of
the Home Civil Service and the Prime Minister's Chief Press
Secretary. They have long been accustomed to such allegations
from the Hon Member. But that is no reason for leaving those
allegations unanswered and my Rt Hon Friend the Prime Minister
had made clear to this House on numerous occasions, including
yesterday afternoon, that they retain her total confidence and

she has asked me to confirm that again this morning.

The Committee's report claims that Sir Robert Armstrong's dual
role as Cabinet Secretary and Head of the Civil Service may have
caused 'a conflictrof interestiin the conduct of.this inquirys

The Government's response to the Seventh Report from the Treasury

and Civil Service Committee already makes clear that it sees no
Fred :pﬁf:m~4@;~f P - ' «ing that is said in
\ N ! .

EhRe Derence vommt beee report aitects that Wl The dual' role dsnat

the issue here. The—fact is that—the—staff _in the Prime

o

Minister's Office have always come withinjthe“fdfﬁéi

responsibility of the Depa;;meﬂt"ﬁﬁose Permanent Secretary is the

Head of the Civil Service - but in practice of course they answer
to the Prime Minister direct,rather than through the Head of the

Civil-Sesvice)in thelday tolday discharge of thefriduties,
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Sir Robert Armstrong: Failure to give a Lead

The Select Committee have said that the Head of the Home Civil
Service failed to give a lead in this case. I cannot accept that
view. He has stated on the record, in evidence to the Select
Committee which has been reported and broadcast, that it would
have been much better not to have disclosed the information in
the way in which it was disclosed. He issued a note of guidance
in February last year on the duties and responsibilities of civil
servants in relation to Ministers. The Treasury and Civil
Service Committee have accepted the validity of those principles
and they have been reaffirmed by the Government in the response
to the Treasury and Civil Service Committee which was published
yesterday. The Head of the Home Civil Service conducted himself,
with assistance from a colleague from the Cabinet Office
(Management and Personnel ;
disclosure of the Solicitor General's letter and reported fully
to the Prime Minister and the Attorney General on the disclosure
and the circumstances in which it came to be made. He took the
view, in my judgement rightly, that it would not be fair or
reasonable to expect the officials who had given an account of
their role to him and co-operated fully in his inquiry to submit
to a second round of detailed questioning of the sort that would
have been involved in giving evidence to the Select Committee.

He offered himself to give evidence to the Select Committee, and
answered their questions fully and fairly at two sessions lasting
altogether for nearly five hours. Indeed, the Select Committee
have relied extensively on his evidence in producing their own.

Report. Far from that being a failure of leadership, it



http://www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/legal/copyright.htm

demonstrates the exercise of leadership with a high degree of

responsibility and integrity.
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There are of course many other issues raised in the Defence
Committee's Fourth Report and I do not intend to comment on these
in detail today. Some of them are relevant to the general
question of the relationship between civil servahts and
Ministers. The Government set out its position on these maters

fully in its response yesterday to the Seventh Report from the

Treasury and Civil Service Committee. This response drew

attention to and reaffirmed the procedures laid down in the note
of guidance issued by Sir Robert Armstrong in February 1985 for
civil servants who are faced with a crisis of conscience. The
Government said then and remains of the view that it is neither
desirable nor practicable 'to attempt to prescribe in detail for
every situation which might arise. But the Government has
already acknowledged that Sir Robert's note was not necessarily
the last word on the subject. And it has been agreed that there
should be further discussions with the Civil Service unions about
the detailed procedures, and about the arrangements for a right

of appeal direct to the Head of the Civil Service.

The matters to which I have referred are but a few of those
raised in the Committee's report. The Government will of course

be making its full views known in due course.
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The Select Committee state that it appears
that Sir Robert Armstrong must have known at the
outset of his inquiry that the disclosure of the
Solicitor General's letter must have been

authorised.

By the time that Sir Robert Armstrong began to
carry out his inquiry, he had reason to believe
that the disclosure had been made by the official
concerned, and that the official concerned had
acted in complete good faith. He had not at that
stage heard the testimony of the official
concerned. Neither was he aware of the full
circumstances, though he was aware that there was
likely to be come conflict of evidence about some
of the circumstances. 1In that situation he took
the view that it would be bremature to report to

the Prime Minister at that stage. The right course

was for him formally to hear the testimony of all

the officials concerned, to ask all necessary

questions of each of them, and then to form a
judgment as to what had occurred. That was exactly
what he did, and in the circumstances it was

1

RTAAAL
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the right and fair thing to do. To have reported

to the Prime Minister what he had reason to
believe, before he had tested the matter thoroughly
by means of his inquiry would have been to risk
reaching erroneous conclusions and a miscarriage of

justice.

RTAAAL
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DRAFT PARAGRAPHS ON DEFENCE SELECT COMMITTEE

REPORT

The Select Committee state that it appears
that Sir Robert Armstrong must have known at the
outset of his inquiry that the disclosure of the
Solicitor General's letter must have been

authorised.

By the time that Sir Robert Armstrong began to
carry out his inquiry, he had reason to believe
that the disclosure had been made by the official
concerned, and that the official concerned had
acted in complete good faith. He had not at that
stage heard the testimony of the official
concerned. Neither was he aware of the full
circumstances, though he was aware that there was
likely to be come conflict of evidence about some
of the circumstances. In that situation he took
the view that it would be premature to report to
the Prime Minister at that stage. The right course
was for him formally to hear the testimony of all
the officials concerned, to ask all necessary

qgquestions of each of them, and then to form a

judgment as to what had occurred. That was exactly

what he did, and in the circumstances it was

1

RTAAAL
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the right and fair thing to do. To have reported

to the Prime Minister what he had reason to

believe, before he had tested the matter thoroughly

by means of his inquiry would have been to risk
reaching erroneous conclusions and a miscarriage of

justice.
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Discipline

The Select Committee said that they find

extraordinary the fact that no disciplinary action

was taken against any of the officials concerned in
the disclosure of the Solicitor General's letter.
My Rt Hon Friend the Prime Minister has already
expressed to her House, in her speech on

27 January, her regret at the manner in which the
disclosure was made. As the Head of the Home Civil
Service has said in his evidence to the Select
Committee, clearly things were done in this affair
which would have been better done differently, and
in that sense people made wrong judgments. The
question is whether those errors of judgment were
such as to call for disciplinary action. As My Rt
Hon Friend the Prime Minister made clear yesterday,
those responsible for decisions about disciplinary
action concluded that there was no case for such
action in these instances. It was not my Rt Hon
Friend's or my responsibility to take that
decision, but I consider it to be an entirely
reasonable decision to take in all the

circumstances.

DUTAAX
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The officials concerned are of course well
aware of the errors of judgment which were made.
They are a matter of public record. That is
something that they have to live with. They are

not likely to repeat those errors. What happened

will be a lesson to othrs for the future. My Rt

Hon Friend the Prime Minister has made it clear
that both she and Mr Rt Hon Friend the Secretary of
State for Trade and Industry have total confidence

in the officials concerned.
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COMMITTEE OFFICE
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01-219 (Direct Line)
01-219 3000 (Switchboard)

DEFENCE COMMITTEE

24 July 1986

I am enclosing copies of the Defence Committee's Third Report,
The Defence Impllcatlons of the Future of Westland plc, and
the Committee's Fourth Report, Westland plc: The Government's

Decision-Making, together with the volume of evidence taken by
the Committee (HC 169)

/m
oot ijf/”

Robert Rogers
Clerk to the Committee

C D Powell Esqg

Private Secretary to the Prime Minister
10 Downing Street

LONDON SW1
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c: Sir Robert Armstrong

MR/ WICKS

Attached am the briefing notes given by Dr Gilbert to some
journalists when copies of the Westland reports were
distributed today.

The sidelinings and other marks are those of the journalist.

S

BERNARD INGHAM
24 July 1986



http://www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/legal/copyright.htm

PRIME MIKISTER

Prime Minister s Veracity

Par 183

"The evidence is that the action of the Prime
Minister’s office on 6 January in relation to the
disclosure was without her direct authority. She has
stated that she had no knowledge on 6 January of what
was taking place. We accept this."

Par 160
Referring to the reason given by the Prime Minister for
the need for the information to have been disclosed to
the Press Association, the report says:"Since the
information was passed by telephone to Westland in any
event, the reason given by the Prime Minister for
releasing the information to the Press Association
begins to look flimsy, to say the least. Sir John
Cuckney told us that the information made no difference
to his policy at the press conference".

Parl84

*..."I did not know about the then Secretary of State
for Trade and Industry’s own role in the matter of the
disclosure until the inquiry had reported.”

We asked Sir Robert Armstrong about this; and he
thought it "strange, but I believe that to be the
case"."

Evasive Answers

Par 198

Committee lists, without comment, evasive answere given
by the Prime Minister on 23rd January.

The "Meeting™ on December 13th

Par81l

The Prime Minister said,"No meeting was agreed so there
was no meeting to cancel ...".

Par 82

®Other members of the Cabinet have referred publicly to
a meeting on Friday 13th in terms which make it clear
that there was a meeting to cancel and that it was
cancelled. "

Par 83

"There is therefore direct conflict of evidence on this
point. It is nevertheless remarkable that, having been
given this commission by his colleagues, Mr Heseltine
was allowed no opporfunity to report formally to those
colleagues. "
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MR BRITTAN

Par 106

Mr Brittan said he had been"put in "the impossible
position of trying actually to carry out the
Government’'s policy of being even-handed ..." We think
it strange that Mr Brittan allowed himself to be put in
what he regarded as an impossible position and we are
surprised at the means he chose to extricate himself
from it."

The “phone call to Mr Churchill on Sunday 29th December
Par 107

"Mr Brittan told us that he thought that if he were to
give the facts about the situation, this would be "open
to misconstruction®, but that if his officials were to
do so, no misunderstanding would arise. This view
suggests an extraordinary understandinc of the
relationship between Ministers and Officials."

Par 109

"This (the above paragraph) indicates the attitude of
mind which was at the heart of the disclosure of the
Solicitor-General’s letter. It is obvious that the
view was taken in Government, and particularly in the
DTI, that the Secretary of State for Defence had
breached collective ministerial responsibility and was
quite openly continuing to do so. This was in part
correct. The consequent assumption that if Mr
Heseltine’s resignation was not to be required, he
could be thwarted by any means cannot be Jjustified.®

Par 172

*Mr Brittan, a Queen’s Counsel, would have been aware
of the special confidentiality of Law Officers” advice.
The Secretary of the Cabinet said of Mr Brittan: " How
far he addressed his mind to the fact that this was the
Solicitor-General’s letter and to the discourtesy or
impropriety or unwisdom of it being disclosed from his
Department I do not know"."

Par 178

"We put the following question to Mr Brittan: "Why was
the Solicitor-General not told that his letter was
going to be leaked?" Mr Brittan would not tell us."

x
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Parndiy

¥In the unusual and Sometimes bizarre reasoning which
has been put before us, a justification has been given
for each step taken. Although those involved must
carry blame for what occurred, what seems especially
reprehensible is a manner of doing business where the
direct and honourable course does not present itself to
the exclusion of all else. It appears that not one of
those involved, from the Secretary of State for Trade
and Industry down, suggested simply telephoning the
Solicitor-General and explaining the need to publish
the “correct information®, that was thought to be so
compelling."

Par 179
"It was not until Wednesday 22 January that the
Solicitor-General discovered that the disclosure of
parts of his letter had been authorised by the
Secretary of State for Trade and Industry....This was
an outrageous way in which to treat a Law Officer of
the Crown ..."

Par 204

"We asked Mr Brittan whether or not he had any
conversation with the Prime Minister, about the fact
that he had authorised disclosure of part of the
Solicitor-General s letter, before the Prime Minister
received the report of the inquiry. He refused to tell
us. When it was put to him that there was a period of
time after the inquiry had been set up during which he
knew what his role had been but chose not to inform the
Prime Minister, he would not comment.®”

Parn205

"If, as the Prime Minister has repeatedly told the
House, the DTI officials were confident that they had Mr
Brittan’s authority for the disclosure, and if, as Mr
Brittan has confirmed, he gave them that authority, his
silence during this time might be thought to have

fallen short of the backing which a Minister normally
gives his officials."

actual course of the leak inquiry.
Mr Brittan refused to te]l] us."
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Par Lei

*We asked Mr Brittan whether he authorised that the
whole document should be published. He refused to tell
us. We asked Mr Brittan who selected the passages to
be guoted. He refused to tell us. Wwe asked Mr Brittan
whether he knew the facts that would enable him to

answer the previous questions. Again, he refused to
tell us."

SIR MICHAEL HAVERS

Par 2195

"He must have known - from Sir Robert Armstrong - that
the disclosure had been authorised at the time he was
asked to grant immunity to Miss Bowe, i1e before the
enquiry had got under way. "

MR MICHAEL HESELTINE

Bdr 222
Mr Heseltine "suggested that the summaries (of the
October Documents put before us) were misleading."

Par 224

"We repudiate any suggestion that the summaries were
misleading in any respect”™.

Par 126
"It cannot be emphasised too strongly that, whatever
the strength of Mr Heseltine's case, it was flawed by
the lateness of its presentation and disadvantaged by
his personal crusade for one particular solution".
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CONDUCT OF OFFICIALS

Par 237

If Ministers cannot demonstrate that officials have
behaved properly, the question of disciplinary
Procedings arigesg,®

leaking of the letter as an
improper act, Sir Robert said: "I wish that they had
had that consideration in their minds. Some of them, 1
ink, did; some of them, 1 think, dig nog is

"Sir Robert Armstrong tolg us that ®"all the DT T
officials concerned"™ first saw the Solicitor—General's

letter in the Secretary of States;private office at
«++.. The fac

Speaking to No.
Public use of the
wWas indicated."

Par 187

"It must therefore be the cage that Mr Ingham and My
Powell were ip a position to tel] the Prime Minister on
7 January what turned out to be the Principal findings
Oof Sir Robert Armstrong’s inquiry more than a fortnight

the Prime
not with sir



http://www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/legal/copyright.htm

YWe know that during the discussion on 7 January the
Prime Minister was told of the Law Officers” concern.
To judge from his letter of that day, which was copied
to the Prime Minister, the Solicitor General was
outraged. The Prime Minister was told "in general
terms that there had been contacts" between her office
and the DTI. Even if the Prime Minister was content to
leave the matter there, it is surprising that Mr Wicks,

her Principal Private Secretary, did not make immediate il

inquiries into a matter which apparently involved a
member of the Private Office which he headed."

The Telephone Calls and "Differences of Understanding”

Par 154

"It is not impossible that four extremely able
officials in key positions would have been capable of
identical misunderstandings of this sort in two
separate telephone conversations. But it is far more
likely that Mr Ingham realised very well that what was
being sought was not agreement but authority for the
disclosure, the authority of No. 10 and so of the Prime
Minister, and this he refused to countenance.”

Bagl 155

"As far as the disclosure of the Solicitor-General’'s
letter was concerned, however, Mr Ingham undoubtedly
realised the implication of what was about to take
place and wished to distance No. 10 and the Prime
Minister from the consequences.”

Par 158

Deals with whether there was a genuine "difference of
understanding® between Miss Bowe and Mr Ingham or
whether Mr Ingham ordered Miss Bowe to do what she did.

Method of Disclosure

par 156

"The method of disclosure that was adopted, the
unattributable communication of tendentious extracts
from the letter was disreputable®.

par 157

"Sir Robert Armstrong’s evidence indicated that the
method of disclosure was agreed in the telephone call
between Mr Ingham and Miss Bowe."
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Par 169

¥In respect of the disclosure on ¢ January, however,
those involved knew, or ought to have known, that what
was done was wrong. The disclosure was made
unattributably in order to conceal the identity of
those concerned. "

Par 17

"In his reply of 7 January to Mr Heseltine the present
Solicitor-General said: "...the rule is very clearly
established that even the fact that the Law Officers
have tendered advice in a particular case may not be
disclosed without their consent, 1let alone the content

Paraliis

"Only by releasing the information unattributably could
the disclosure be limited to those parts of the letter
that damaged Mr Heseltine. "
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Par 159

"It was the company which had first drawn the
Government’s attention to differences between the
Defence Secretary’s letter of 3 January and the Prime
MinisterisMlettariofl] "Jantary Mand it was the Chairman
of the company who had said to an official of the DTI
on > January that it was very important to Westland
that the matter should be cleared up before the Press
Conference the next day. Yet the information was given
first to the Press Association."

Par 162
"It is clear that the passages chosen for selective
disclosure from the Solicitor-General’s letter were
calculated to do the maximum damage to Mr Heseltine's
case and to his personal credibi lity."

Par 16 *
"However, an examination of the Press Association tapes
on 6 January and the reports carried by the newspapers
on 7 January demonstrates that further parts of the

letter were disclosed after the original call from Miss

Bowe to the Press Association."™
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WESTLAND

General Line to Take

The Government will, of course, respond to these reports in

due course. I should, however, like to make two things

clear straight away.

First, my Rt. Hon. Friend the Secretary of State for Trade
and Industry and I have total confidence in our officials
referred to in the Report. As the House will be aware,
those responsible for civil service discipline have already

decided that there is no case for action in this instance.

Second, I do not accept the Committee's comments on the role
of the Head of the Home Civil Service. He continues to

have the Government's total confidence.
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SUPPLEMENTARIES

Will the Prime Minister now comment on the circumstances

surrounding the disclosure of the Solicitor General's
letter.

My statement on 23 January and my speech on 27 January were
checked for accuracy with everyone concerned, and I have
nothing to add to what I said then. {We shall of course be
responding to the report of the Select Committee in due

course}.

Officials giving evidence?

I have set out the normal rules for appearances before
Select Committees by officials in my reply to the Hon.
Member for Linlithgow on 17 February. I have nothing to
add. |

Debate?

This is a matter for my Rt. Hon. Friend the Leader of the

House.

Mogg Promotion?

24 July 1986
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Monday 17 February 1986

(Answered by the Prime Minister on Monday 17 February 1986)

UNSTARRED Mr Tam Dalyell: To ask the Prime Minister, what

No. 121 is her general policy towards the circumstances

(W) in which officials whose conduct has been the
subject of an internal inquiry should be authorised
to appear as witnesses before a Select Committee's
inquiry into related matters; to what extent
the practical application of this policy would
be influenced in any given case by: (a) the rank
or position of the official in gquestion, (b)
whether or not disciplinary action had been taken
and (c) the fact that immunity from prosecution
had been granted; and if she will make a statement.

THE PRIME MINISTER:

Officials giving evidence before Select Committees do so

on behalf of their Ministers, and it is therefore customary

for Ministers to decide which officials should represent

them for this purpose. The principles are set out in "Memorandum
of Guidance for Officials appearing before Select Committees",
issued as General Notice GEN 80/38, a copy of which is in

the Library of the House.
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COMMITTEE OFFICE
HOUSE OF COMMONS

LONDON SWIA OAA
01-219 (Direct Line)
01-219 3000 (Switchboard)

DEFENCE COMMITTEE

24 July 1986

/S{ew /%A/%:,

I am enclosing copies of the Defence Committee's Third Report,
The Defence Implications of the Future of Westland plc, and
the Committee's Fourth Report, Westland plc: The Government's
Decision-Making, together with the volume of evidence taken by

the Committee (HC 169).

o e

Robert Rogers
Clerk to the Committee

Nigel Wicks Esg CBE

Principal Private Secretary to the
Prime Minister

10 Downing Street

LONDON Swl
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PERSONAL AND CONFIDENTIAL

SIR ROBERT ARMSTRONG

Thank you for your minute of 23 July.

2. | have considered carefully the view taken at your meeting
yesterday but feel that it is essential that | should make the point

tomorrow that at the time the inquiry was instituted | did not know that

the disclosure had been mad:by_ Miss Bowe.

3. | am enclosing a draft of the Answer i propose to give to

the arranged Parliamentary Question.

4. | am sending copies of this minute and its enclosure to
the Lord President, the Lord Privy Seal, the Chief Whip and Mr Wicks.

M
/

23 July 1986

PERSONAL AND CONFIDENTIAL
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Question: To ask Mr Attorney General, if he has yet received
copies of the Reports of the Select Committee on

Defence on Westland.

Answer: Yes. The Select Committee state that if, when | authorised
an offer of immunity from prosecution to one of the officials
concerned in the Head of the Home Civil Service's inquiry
into the circumstances of the disclosure of the Solicitor
General's letter of 6 January, | was able at that stage to
say that under no circumstances would | have prosecuted the
official concerned, | must have known, and could only have
learned from the Head of the Home Civil Service, that the

disclosure had been authorised.

| wish to make it absolutely clear that at the time when
wha

b
| advised that an inquiry be instituted, | did not know thgt
W zL‘\MI“ M

; (en m A Lt
the disclosure had been made by the official concerned or

that it had been authorised by the then Secretary of State

for Trade and Industry or at all.

At the time when | granted immunity to the official concerned,
while | had reason to believe that the disclosure had been made
by the official concerned, and that the official concerned had
acted in complete good faith, | was not aware of the full

circumstances. It was important that the inquiry should

PERSONAL AND CONFIDENTIAL
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PERSONAL AND CONFIDENTIAL

- page two -

discover as fully as possible the circumstances in which the

disclosure came to be made, and should provide those

concerned with the opportunity of giving their accounts

of their part in the affair. It was clear that the testimony
of the official in question would be vital to the inquiry, and
| judged it right that possible impediment to full
co-operation in the inquiry should be removed. | was and
am satisfied that that in no way interfered with the course
of justice: the facts as disclosed in the inquiry confirmed
my judgment that there would have been no question of

proceeding against the official concerned.

As the Select Committee recognise, | was not told of the

direct involvement of the then Secretary of State for Trade

and Industry until 22 January.

PERSONAL AND CONFIDENTIAL
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CONFIDENTIAL

MR. INGHAM

WESTLAND - IMMEDIATE RESPONSE

We discussed this afternoon your minute of today which sets
out your proposed line at the 11 a.m. lobby tomorrow. On the
basis of the discussion, I suggest that your response should
be as follows:

You could use paragraph 1 and the first sentence of
paragraph 2 of your minute. But I would not say that the
Prime Minister might give an "initial reaction" during
Question Time. This might build up expectations

undesirably.

On paragraphs 3 and 4 you should not draw attention to
the Written Question down to the Attorney General (there
will not be a Written Question down to the Prime

Minister).

The point in paragraph 5 is fine.

Though the TCSC report might be mentioned in passing, you
should be wary of putting too much weight on the point in
paragraph 6, since this might suggest to some that you
had advance copy of the Report (which is the case).

Paragraph 7 will not arise since you will not be trailing

the Prime Minister's reply in the afternoon.

I think you can certainly use paragraphs 8, 9, 11, 12 and
1L

Paragraph 10 falls since you will not be trailing the
Attorney General's Question. If asked about it, I
suggest that you say "We'll have to wait and see what he

says".

JD3AO0P
CONFIDENTIAL
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L

If any of this gives you any difficulty, please have a

word.

NLW
23 July, 1986.

CONFIDENTIAL
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cc: Chief Whip /\/ LUJ

Sir Robert Armstrong
Sir Brian Hayes 2§02

Attorney General's Office

WESTLAND - IMMEDIATE RESPONSE

This note sets out the line which, subject to agreement, and
checking of the facts, I propoose to take at the llam Lobby

tomorrow:

iy The Prime Minister and members of the Cabinet are not
aware of the contents of the report since Cabinet began
at 10.30 before publication (and receipt, by those

named in the report, of advance copies).

Obviously officials will be reading the report and
preparing briefing for the Prime Minister when she is
in the House for Questions this afternoon. She would
hope to give an initial reaction then; this is all that

the time factor allows.

There are also two Written Questions down - one to the
Prime Minister and the other to the Attorney General -
and it is hoped the Prime Minister and the Attorney
General will be able to set out briefly in writing
_their initial reaction to points some time after

3 30pni.

I would not expect either Written Answer to go much
beyond what the Prime Minister would be prepared to
say, i1f asked, at 3.15pm; after all the Government will
want to give the two reports of the Defence Select

Committee careful consideration.

CONFIDENTIAL
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2
The Government will of course reply formally to the

reports in due course - ie in a few months' time.

In the meantime, I should draw attention to the
Government's response to the Treasury and Civil Service
Select Committee report published at llam which in
particular deals with the combined post of Head of the

Civil Service and Cabinet Secretary (paras 41-42).

answer to questions, I would make the following points:

2 Why is the Prime Minister prepared to answer questions

so quickly?

I think she will wish to answer a number of points
immediately since the report refers to particular

individuals.

Is your or any other official's job in danger?

May I remind you that there have of course been
previous expressions of confidence in the officials
concerned. I have no reason to believe you will see

any change of personnel.

Has any official offered to resign?

Not that I'm aware of.

Will the Attorney General's Answer deal with the

suggestion he knew who had authorised the leak when he

offered immunity?

It could well do so.

Will any Minister be giving interviews on the report?

No.
CONFIDENTIAL
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3.

Doesn't this report come as a further blow to the

Government?

My clear impression is that outside the Palace of

Wesminster the public were massively bored by the whole

esoteric Westland affair as long ago as last January

and perhaps even before that - as I believe I told you
then,

In answer to all other questions - eg how does Prime
Minister/Ministers/Officials/you feel about the report?
How can you stay in your job etc, I shall offer no

comment.

BERNARD INGHAM
23 July 1986

CONFIDENTIAL
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10 DOWNING STREET

From the Principal Private Secretary

Sir Robert Armstrong

REPORTS OF THE SELECT COMMITTEE ON DEFENCE ON WESTLAND

Following the discussion earlier thisvéQening, I enclose a
revised draft of the oral reply attached to my minutes of
earlier today. This reflects the discussion at the meeting.

We will need to settle the form of the Question when we have
seen the Report.

I am copying this minute to the Private Secretaries to the
Lord President, Lord Privy Seal, Secretary of State for

Trade and Industry, the Chief Whip, and to the Legal
Secretary to the Attorney General.

NLW

23 July, 1986.

PERSONAL AND CONFIDENTIAL
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QUESTION:

JD3AON

Will my Rt. Hon. Friend say whether she has any
comment on the reports of the Select Committee

on Defence published this morning?

The Government will, of course, respond to these
reports in due course. I should, however, like

to make two things clear straight away.

First, my Rt. Hon. Friend the Secretary of State

for Trade and Industry and I have total

confidence in our officials referred to in the
Report. As he will be aware, those responsible
for civil service discipline have already
decided that there is no case for action in this

instance.

Second, I do not accept the Committee's comments
on the role of the Head of the Home Civil
Service. He continues to have the Government's

total confidence.
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10 DOWNING STREET

From the Principal Private Secretary

SIR ROBERT ARMSTRONG

THE REPORTS OF THE SELECT COMMITTEE ON DEFENCE ON WESTLAND

Further to my minute of earlier today, I enclose a revised
draft of the oral reply which was attached to my minute.
This reflects the Prime Minister's own comments.

I am copying this minute to the Private Secretaries to the
Lord President, Lord Privy Seal, Secretary of State for
Trade and Industry, the Chief Whip and to the Legal
Secretary to the Attorney General.

N.C.J.

N. L. Wicks

23 July 1986

PERSONAL AND CONFIDENTIAL
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(REVISED VERSION)

ORAL ANSWER

Question:

Will my Rt. Hon. Friend say whether she has any

comment on the reports of the Select Committee on

Defence published this morning?

The Government would, of course, respond to these
reports in due course. Since they make criticisms
of a number of individuals, hdwever, I should like

to make two points straight away.

First, the House will already be aware that those
responsible for discipline in the Civil Service -
not I - have decided that there are no grounds for
disciplinary action in this matter. My Rt. Hon.
Friend the Secretary of State for Trade and
Industry and I have total confidence in our

officials referred to in the Report.

Second, I do not agree with the Committee's
comments on the role of the Head of the Home Civil
Service. He too has the Government's complete

confidence.
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SIR ROBERT ARMSTRONG

s Thank you for your minute of 21 July enclosing a draft of a statement

reacting to the Select Committee's Reports on the Westland affair.

2% | think it important that the statement should make it clear that at
the time the inquiry was instituted | did not know that the disclosure had

been made by Ms Bowe, nor did | know of any authorisation given to her.

3. | am attaching a re-draft of the first part of your paragraph 3, which
attempts to make this point and which omits the complaint about the
Select Committee's failure to observe the requirements of natural justice.
On reflection, | feel that this might be a hostage to fortune and seems

to accept that | might, in some way, be to blame.

| have no comments on the other parts of your draft.

5, | am copying this minute to the Lord President of the Council, the
Lord Privy Seal, the Chief Whip and Mr Wicks.

22 July 1986

PERSONAL AND CONFIDENTIAL
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3. | should make it absolutely clear first that my Rt.Hon. and
Learned Friend the Attorney General did not, at the time when
the inquiry was set up on 13 January, know that the disclosure
had been made by the official concerned or that it had been
authorised by the then Secretary of State for Trade and Industry
or at all.  Secondly, when my Rt.Hon. and Learned Friend the
Attorney General later granted immunity to the official concerned,
he was satisfied, by what the Head of the Civil Service was able
to tell him, that there was reason to believe that the disclosure

had been made by the official concerned and that there was no

reason to doubt that that official had acted in complete good

faith. But neither he nor the Head of the Home Civil Service
knew that the disclosure had been authorised by the then

Secretary of State for Trade and Industry. .......



http://www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/legal/copyright.htm

10 DOWNING STREET

/\%
G s f

3,, QL,M bar [t Thou



http://www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/legal/copyright.htm



http://www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/legal/copyright.htm

PERSONAL AND CONFIDENTIAL

1w,

10 DOWNING STREET PM_ oo 0z,

From the Principal Private Secretary A ar:) W (“—‘MQQ 2
11 rk/‘H < ! Lk

SIR ROBERT ARMSTRONG W. e
2.3_)

THE REPORTS OF THE SELECT COMMITTEE ON DEFENCE ON
WESTLAND

The Prime Minister saw overnight your minute of 22 July
in which you suggested a draft question and answer, setting

out the Government's initial response to the Select
Committee's Reports on Westland.

The Prime Minister has not yet nsidered the drafting
of the suggested answer in detail. But she has comment&d
that there néeds to be a lot of work done to reduce the
draft answer to the minimum wording necessary.

This cannot be done until we have seen the Reports.
But I have set out, in the attachments to this minute,
possible drafts of what the Prime Minister might say in
response both to an oral question and in any following
written answer. You will see that the written question
differs from the version suggested in the attachment to your
minute of yesterday; this reflects the Prime Minister's own
drafting.

Having read the reyised written answer, I do wonder
whether it is necessary because:-

(i) there must be some risk that a written answer
would stimulate strong demands in Parliament for
the Prime Minister~—to come to the floor of the

House fo maEe an oral Statement at ten o'clock.

This clearly is to be avoided;

et Y

the written text does not say much more than what
is said in the oral answer; i T T

“Timing

to the extent it does, it contradicts the

reasening given for an early initial response;
i.e., this is required in view o e comments
made on individuals in the Reports; and to the

extent that the written answer goes beyond the
reply on comments on individuals and gets into
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substance (the role of Select Committees and the
combination of positions of Secretary of the
Cabinet and the Head of the Civil Service), the
greater the risk identified in (i) above;

it risks provoking the Select Committee Lobby in
general, and the Defence Committee in particular,
in defence of their right to present a Report
covering conduct of Government matters and the
behaviour of particular named civil servants.
Clearly we want to avoid such provocation since it
would simply cause the issue to run.

I am therefore somewhat doubtful whether we need a written
answer, though I agree that it is helpful to have one tabled
as a contingency.

I should be grateful for comments on the drafts
attached. The Prime Minister may need to call a meeting.

I am sending a copy of this minute to the Private
Secretaries to the Lord President, Lord Privy Seal,

Secretary of State for Trade and Industry, the Chief Whip
and to the Legal Secretary to the Attorney General.

N. L. WICKS

23 July 1986
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(REVISED VERSION)

ORAL ANSWER

Question:

Reply:

Will my Rt. Hon. Friend say whether she has any
comment on the reports of the Select Committee on

Defence published this morning?

w4

The Govérnment‘weu&&, of course, respond to these
reports in due course. Since they make criticisms
of a number of individuals, hdwever, I should like

to make two points straight away.

First, the House will already be aware that those
responsible for discipline in the Civil Service -
wemid=~ have decided that there are no grounds for
disciplinary action in this matter. My Rt. Hon.
Friend the Secretary of State for Trade and
Industry and I have total confidence in our

officials referred to in the Report.

Second, I do not agree with the Committee's
comments on the role of the Head of the Home Civil
Service. He too has the Government's complete

confidence.
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Question: Will my Rt hon Friend say whether she has any
comment on the reports of the Select Committee

on Defence published this morning?

The Government would, of course, respond to these
reports in due course. ~ Since they make criticisms
of a number of individuals, however, I should

like to make two points straight away.

)

First, the House will already be aware that those
p————
responsible for discipline in the Civil Service

/

- not I - have deqided that there are no grounds
For disciplinary/action in this matter. My Rt

hon Friend the/Seéretary‘Qf State for Trade and
S el
Industry and I have the—fuiiest confidence in

our officials referred to in the Report.

|
|

; dp M"‘W ot

Second, I Pedi+ewve—+irat the Committee's comments

on the‘role of the Head of the Home Civil Service («

afe—tota%%yhunwarrantgg. He too has the Government's

P P
fuliest confidence.

c,ﬁnhlﬁﬂ
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WRITTEN ANSWER

To ask the Prime Minister, if she has received the reports

of the Select Committee on Defence on Westlands plc; and

if she will make a statement.

Draft reply:

As I said in the House this afternoon, the Government will
respond to the Committee's reports in due course. But in
view of references to particular individuals there are a

number of points which should be answered immediately.

In relation to the Select Committee's references to disciplinary
action, those responsible for Civil Service discipline decided,
having regard to all the circumstances, that there were no
grounds for disciplinary action. It was not my responsibility
to take that decision, but I consider it to have been an
entirely reasonable one. I have the fullest confidence in

the officials concerned in my office and so does my Rt hon
Friend the Secretary of State for Trade and Industry in the

officials concerned in his own Department.

In relation to the Committee's comments on the Head of the
Home Civil Service I believe their criticisms are totally
unwarranted. It was the Head of the Home Civil Service who
proposed to me there there should be an inquiry; he conducted
it thoroughly and impartially; he offered himself to give

evidence to the Select Committee on Defence; and he answered -
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their questions fully and fairly at two sessions, lasting
altogether for nearly five hours. Far from that being a
failure of leadership it demonstrated the exercise of leadership

with a high degree of responsibility and integrity.

In relation to the Select Committee's comments on the question
of combining the position of Secretary of the Cabinet and

Head of the Home Civil Service, the Government's view is

set out in its response to the Seventh Report of the Treasury
and Civil Service Committee, which is being presented today

as Command 9841.

The Select Committee's Report demonstrates the problems that

arise when this type of inquiry extends beyond questions

of departmental policy and execution into the performance

and conduct of individuals. On this aspect of the matter

I would refer the House to paragraphs 13 and 14 of the Government's
response to the Seventh Report of the Treasury and Civil

Service Committee, which deals with the implications of Ministerial

accountability to Parliament for relations between civil

servants and Select Committees. Those paragraphs read as

follows:
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Accouniability

13. The Government endorses the Committee’s two basic propositions on
accountability: that Ministers and not officials are responsible and accountable
for policy; and that officials’ advice to Ministers is and should remain confiden.
tial. Constitutionally, Ministers are responsible and accountable for all actions
carned out by civil servants of their departments in pursuit of Government
policies or in the discharge of responsibilities laid upon them by Parliament.
The delegation of authority to managers at all levels. which is an important part
of the Government's drive for more efficient and economic use of resources in

the Civil Service. involves internal accountability within departments and does
not conflict in any way with the external accountability of the Minister to
Parliament. Any attempt to make civil servants directly accountable to Par]i--
ment, other than the strictly defined case of the Accounting Officer’s res
bility, would be difficult to reconcile with Ministers® responsibility for their
departments and civil servants’ duty to their Ministers.

14. This has implications for the position of civil servants in relation to Select
Committees generally and the Departmental Select Committees in particular.
These Committees were established to examine the expenditure, administra-
tion and policy of government departments, and the conventions accepted as
applying to the exercise of their powers are set out comprehensively in the First
Report from the House of Commons Select Committee on Procedure (Session
1977-78, HC 588) and the memorandum to that Committee by the Clerk of the
House. The report and the memorandum recognised that civil servants who
give evidence to Select Committees do so on behalf of their Ministers; that
there are certain matters on which they cannot answer questions (notably, as
the Committee's own report states. on policy matters—which are for Minis-
ters—and on advice given to Ministers); and that, as the Procedure Commit-
tee’s report stated:

“it would not. however, be appropriate for the House to seek directly or
through its Committees to enforce its rights to secure information from
the Executive at a level below that of the ministerial head of department
concerned (normally a Cabinet Minister), since such a practice would
tend to undermine rather than strengthen the accountability of Ministers
to the House™;

and as the memorandum to the Procedure Committee by the Clerk of the
House stated:

“it would certainly appear more in accordance with Ministerial
accountability to the House that Ministers should accept responsibility
for the conduct of their officials, and that the House should proceed
against Ministers™,

Itis not. in the Government's view, generally in accordance with those conven-
tions. or with the underlying principles of ministerial accountability, that Select
Committees should criticise individual civil servants who are, for the reasons
already explained. unable to speak freely in their own defence.



http://www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/legal/copyright.htm

SIS

e O

//
,Zfaﬂﬂ— Ce e
s
70 WHITEHALL, LONDON SWI1A 2AS
01-233 8319 N. L. k—-).

z27.7
From the Secretary qf the Cabinet and Head of the Home Civil Service b

Sir Robert Armstrong GCB CVO

Ref. A086/2149

ATTORNEY GENERAL /

Thank you for your minute of 22 July.

2, As you know, the Prime Minister has suggested - and I
gather you are content - that you should reply separately on

the point about whether you knew that the disclosure had been

authorised by the Secretary of State for Trade and Industry
when you authorised me to offer immunity from prosecution to
Miss Bowe. The latest version of the draft Written Answer by
the Prime Minister still includes the material on this, but

on the understanding that it would in fact become a separate

Answer,
b
3 When I discussed these matters with the Chier Wip and
others on the evening of 22 July, the view was taken -
particularly by the Chief Whip and Mr Ingham - that it would
“ PEERCRPT SNy,
be better not to try and deal at this stage with the point

that at the time the inguiry was instituted you did not know

that the disclosure had been made by Miss Bowe. The point

can be dealt with when we come to the Government's full
response to the Select Committee's Report: if you add that to
your answer now, it will give the scrutineers and critics
something else to fasten on and make an issue of during
Thursday and Friday, when there are likéTg—Eo be a number of
i)
PERSONAL AND CONFIDENTIAL

PQSAAW
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Parliamentary opportunities to take these matters up: in
Prime Minister's Question Time, on the Business Statement, on
the Motion for the Adjournment, perhaps during the
Consolidated Fund debate, and in Mr Dalyell's adjournment
debate.

4, I am sending copies of this minute to the Lord
President, the Lord Privy Seal, the Chief Whip and Mr Wicks.

22 July 1986

2
PERSONAL AND CONFIDENTIAL
POSAAW
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cc Mr. Ingham
f’ﬂ N Mr. Powell
PRIME MINISTER \‘ Vﬁlrv Jrq? Mr. Flesher
o
et

THE REPORTS OF THE SELECT COMMITTEE ON DEFENCE ON WESTLAND

I agree generally with Sir Robert Armstrong's advice in his
minute attached, subject to the one concern below. We can
refine the language of the answers tomorrow and Thursday,

m——Es o yr T 5
but it would be helpful to know whether you are generally

content with their form. I am doubtful whether Part V on

- e
the Select Committees and Ministerial Accountability is necessary.

L AT ST,

But Sir Robert Armstrong and the Chief Whip strongly think

1 18,

My concern, which I will discuss further with the Chief Whip

and the Lord Privy Seal, is whether a Written Answer on the

lfﬁggﬁdrafted will stimulate irresistfgle demands in Parliament

[

for you to come to the floor of the House to repeat what is

said. (This happened with Mr. Ridley recently with his water
—

privatisation Written Answer which he had to repeat later
that day as an Oral Statement.) I hope that any requests

of this sort can be met on the lines that you made an Oral

Statement in your Oral Answers earlier that afternoon. But
we need to make sure. TR,

—_—

&
Subject to this point,

(i) Are you content that we should inspire a

Parliamentary Question on the lines of the draft

at Annex A? 69“4k- ”:) I,

Have you any comments on the draft answers?

/l oMo

e ,....A«L;:r

R S Les by
VoL o nesde

. \ S S AN /)
-+Q d: ”~va*- o ‘Aﬁp “)

~ ol A boa b b
PERSONAL AND CONFIDENTIAL f oA~ V%0, . —

(N. L. WICKS)
22 July 1986
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Ref. A086/2148

MR WICKS

The Reports of the Select Committee on Defence on Westland

Thank you for your minute of 22 July.
2 I have now discussed this matter further with the Chief
Whip, the Permanent Secretary to the Department of Trade and

Industry, and the Legal Secretary to the Law Officers.

34 As to the proposal that there should be Questions for

Written Answer on Thursday 24 July, we were told that the Lord

President took the view that, while the material in the Written

Answer should be available for the Prime Minister's use when she

was answering oral Questions, it would be preferable not to put
gy

down Questions for Written Answer. The Chief Whip and others at

my discussion feIt that, even though the Prime Minister might
g el s

draw on the material in answer to oral Questions, it would be

advantageous to have the material set out fully in Written

Answers. These would be important as points of referegée for the
prass and others, and would in the nature of things be likely to
be rather fuller than anything that could be said in reply to

N
oral Questions.

4. The Attorney General is perfectly content to reply himself
directly through an arranged Parliamentary Question. His office
will arrange for a Question to be put down accordingly. I

P —r—-

suggest that that Question should be in the form:

\
"To ask the Attorney General, if he has yet received copies
of the Reports of the Select Committee on Defence on

Westland".

1
PERSONAL AND CONFIDENTIAL
PQSAAU
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By We considered at my meeting whether the Secretary of State
for Trade and Industry should be advised to arrange a Question
for Written Answer on 24 July, but we concluded that the position
of his officials should be regarded as being covered by the Prime
Minister's Answer: it would be disadvantageous to have a
prolifer;tion of answers, with people closely scrutinising them

for differences of emphasis and so on.

6. We concluded that there was no advantage in having a
parallel arranged Question for Written Answer put down for the
Secretary of State tor Defence. The immediate interest will not

oL e T g T {14
focus on the defence implications or on Ministry of Defence

officials; and the report on the defence implications of the

Westland affair will be a very long document.

1 The proposal is, therefore, that the Prime Minister's office
should arrange for a Question to be put down to her, for Written
answer on Thursday 24 July. I attach at Annex A a draft of that
Answer. At thi3 stage—~l have retained the paragraphs about the

aAttorney General, so that the Prime Minister can see the form

which it is proposed (subject to the views of the Attorney

———T ———

General) that they should take; but that would of course

e ————rT

disappearhffom the text of the Prime Minister's Answer and be

transferred to the Attorney General's.
A

8. There have been various drafting changes in the draft

Written Answer, though it is basically on the lines of the draft
attached to your minute of 21 July. My meeting took the view,

however, that it would be useful to retain a final paragraph on

Select Committees and Ministerial accountability: with a direct
quotation from the relevant paragraphs of the response to the

Treasury and Civil Service Committee. The Chief Whip strongly

concurred in this view. T

2
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9. I attach at Annex B a first draft of a reply which the Prime

. . . t""—_————.—_——— .
Minister could use in the course of her oral Questions on

Thursday 24 July, if a suitable opportunity arose.
M

10. I am sending copies of this minute to the Private
Secretaries to the Lord President, the Lord Privy Seal, the
Secretary of State for Trade and Industry and the Chief Whip and
to the Legal Secretary to the Attorney General.

ROBERT ARMSTRONG

22 July 1986
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ANNEX A

Draft of 22 July

DRAFT QUESTION

Ier ntcouaél U —
To ask the Prim%'yinister, if she Wik Gt
seatenant oh-te reports from Select Committee
on Defence on Westland plc. a~d - A W
h,gL*.s :f;LJ:uJ’

DRAFT ANSWER

I. The leaks of the Select Committee's Reports

The Government will respond to the
Committee's Reports in due course in the usual
way; but in view of a number of references in
the Report to particular individuals there are
a number of points which should be answer ed

immediately.

11. The Attorney General

'fibq Sazcath\.\4-~Qb 2.

L) ,
J'-" ""h m 4ﬁ°""‘“}/’my Rt Hon and Learned Friend the Attorney

auuu@&dhb' ;1¢r£}'f1Lu¢ General authorised an offer of immunity from
N, i

The Select Committee state that if, when
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prosecution to one of the officials concerned
in the Head of the Home Civil Service's inquiry
into the circumstances of the disclosure of

the Solicitor General's letter of 6 January,

he was able at that stage to say that under no
circumstances would he have prosecuted the
official concerned, he must have known, and
could only have learnt from the Head of the
Home Civil Service, that the disclosure had

been authorised.

3. The conclusion does not follow from the

premise. While he had reason to believe that
the disclosure had been made by the official
concerned, and that the official concerned had
acted in complete good faith, neither he nor
the Head of the Home Civil Service were at that
time aware of the full circumstances. 1t was
important that the inquiry should discover as
fully as possible the circumstances in which
the disclosure came to be made, and should
provide those concerned with the opportunity of
giving their accounts of their parts in the
affair. It was clear that the testimony of the
official in question would be vital to the

inquiry, and my Rt Hon and Learned Friend

2
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judged it right that that possible impediment
to full co-operation in the inquiry should be
removed. My Rt Hon and Learned Friend was and
is satisfied that that in no way interfered
with the course of justice: the facts as
disclosed in the inquiry confirmed his judgment

that there would have been no question of

l proceeding against the official concerned.

III. Should disciplinary action have been

taken against civil servants?

4, The Select Committee say that they find
extraordinary the fact that no disciplinary
action was taken against any of the officials
concerned in the disclosure of the Solicitor
General's letter. [F have already expressed to
the House, in my speech on 27 January, my
regret at the manner in which the disclosure
was made. As the Head of the Home Civil
Service said in his evidence to the Select
Committee, clearly things were done in this
affair which would have been better done

differently, and in that sense people made

wrong judgmentsi] 1t was decided by those

responsible, having regard to all the

B
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circumstances, that the officials concerned had
acted in good faith and that there were no
grounds for disciplinary action. It was not my
responsibility to take that decision, but I
consider it to have been an entirely reasonable
one. I have the fullest confidence in the
officials concerned in my office and so does my
Rt Hon Friend the Secretary of State for Trade
and Industry in the officials concerned in his

own Department,.

IV. The Head of the Home Civil Service

b, The Committee suggest that this case may
demonstrate one of the conflicts of interest
which the Treasury and Civil Service Committee
identified when they recommended that the posts
of Secretary of the Cabinet and Head of the
Home Civil Service should not be held by the
same individual. On the question of combining
the positions of Secretary of the Cabinet and

Head of the Home Civil Service 1 have seen

nothing in these Reports which lead me to wish

to add to the Government's response to the

e
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Seventh Report of the Treasury and Civil
Service Committee, which is being presented

today as Cmnd 9841.

6. The Committee suggest that in this case
the Head of the Home Civil Service failed to
give civil servants the lead for which they
were entitled to look to him. Following
discussions with my Rt Hon and Learned Friend
the Attorney General, it was the Head of the
Home Civil Service who proposed to me that
there should be an inquiry. He conducted that
inquiry himself, with the assistance of a
colleague from the Cabinet Office (Management
and Personnel Office), and reported fully to me
and to my Rt Hon and Learned Friend the
Attorney General on the disclosure and the
circumstances in which it came to be made.
Since it would have been unfair for the people

concerned to be subjected to a second process

of inquiry into the same events, he offered

himself to give evidence to the Select
committee on Defence, and answered their
guestions fully and fairly at two sessions

lasting altogether for nearly five hours. Far

5
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from that being a failure of leadership, it
demonstrated the exercise of leadership with a

high degree of responsibility and integrity.

AVAS Select Committees and Ministerial

accountability

e The Select Committee's Report
demonstrates the problems that arise when this
type of inquiry extends beyond questions of

departmental policy and execution into the

performance and conduct of individuals. On

this aspect of the matter I would refer to the
House to paragraphs 13 and 14 of the
Government's response to the Seventh Report of
the Treasury and Civil Service Committee, which
deals with the implications of Ministerial
accountability to Parliament for relations
beween civil servants and Select Committees.

Those paragraphs read as follows:

6
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13. The Government endorses the Committee’s two basic propositions on
accountability: that Ministers and not officials are responsible and accountable
for policy; and that officials’ advice to Ministers is and should remain confiden-
tial. Constitutionally, Ministers are responsible and accountable for al] actions
carried out by civil servants of their departments in pursuit of Government
policies or in the discharge of responsibilities laid upon them by Parliament.
The delegation of authority to managers at all levels. which is an important part
of the Government’s drive for more efficient and economic use of resources in

the Civil Service, involves internal accountability within departments and does
not conflict in any way with the external accountability of the Minister to
Parliament. Any attempt to make civil servants directly accountable to Pari~-
ment, other than the strictly defined case of the Accounting Officer’s resp
bility, would be difficult to reconcile with Ministers’ responsibility for their
departments and civil servants’ duty to their Ministers.

14.  This has implications for the position of civil servants in relation to Select
Committees generally and the Departmental Select Committees in particular.
These Committees were established to examine the expenditure, administra-
tion and policy of government departments, and the conventions accepted as
applying to the exercise of their powers are set out comprehensively in the First
Report from the House of Commons Select Committee on Procedure (Session
1977-78, HC 588) and the memorandum to that Committee by the Clerk of the
House. The report and the memorandum recognised that civil servants who
give evidence to Select Committees do so on behalf of their Ministers; that
there are certain matters on which they cannot answer questions (notably, as
the Committee’s own report states, on policy matters—which are for Minis-
ters—and on advice given to Ministers); and that, as the Procedure Commit-
tee’s report stated:

“it would not, however, be appropriate for the House to seek directly or
through its Committees to enforce its rights to secure information from
the Executive at a level below that of the ministerial head of department
concerned (normally a Cabinet Minister), since such a practice would
tend to undermine rather than strengthen the accountability of Ministers
to the House’;

and as the memorandum to the Procedure Committee by the Clerk of the
House stated:

“it would certainly appear more in accordance with Ministerial
accountability to the House that Ministers should accept responsibility
for the conduct of their officials, and that the House should proceed
against Ministers™.

Itis not, in the Government's view. generally in accordance with those conven-
tions, or with the underlying principles of ministerial accountability, that Select
Committees should criticise individual civil servants who are, for the reasons
already explained, unable to speak freely in their own defence.
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ANNEX B

DratEv o2 20 July

[To ask the Prime Minister, whether she has
seen the Reports of the Select Committee on

Defence on Westland.]

These Reports were published at 11.00 am
this morning, while I was in a meeting of the
Cabinet, and I have had no opportunity since

then to study them in detail.

The Government will respond to the Reports

in due course in the usual way. Since,

however, there are comments on a number of

individuals, there are certain points which I

wish to make at once.

The Select Committee say that they find
extraordinary the fact that no disciplinary
action was taken against any of the officials
concerned in the disclosure of the Solicitor
General's letter. 1t has been made clear to
the House that it was decided by those
responsible, having regard to all the

1
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circumstances, that the officials concerned had

acted in good faith and that there were no

grounds for disciplinary action. It was not my

responsibility to take that decision, but I
consider it to be an entirely reasonable one.

I have the fullest confidence in the officials
concerned in my own office and so does my Rt
Hon Friend the Secretary of State for Trade and
Industry in the officials concerned in his
Department. Since my Chief Press Secretary has
been singled out for special attention in this
matter, I should like to make clear my
unreserved confidence in his skill and

integrity.

The Committee also suggest that in this
case the Head of the Home Civil Service failed
to give civil servants the lead for which they
were entitled to look to him. I think that
that comment is totally unwarranted. Far from
his role in the matter being a failure of
leadership, it demonstrated the exercise of
leadership with a high degree of responsibility
and integrity. He has my and the Government's

fullest confidence.

2
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NASNTEL cc S lJec]

10 DOWNING STREET

From the Principal Private Secretary

SIR ROBERT ARMSTRONG

THE REPORT OF THE SELECT COMMITTEE ON DEFENCE ON WESTLAND

The Prime Minister had a short discussion this morning with
the Chancellor of the Duchy of Lancaster, the Lord Privy
Seal and the Chief Whip about the Government's response to
the Select Committee's Report.

It was agreed that three questions for Written Answer should
be tabled tomorrow to the Prime Minister, the Secretary of
State for Defence and the Attorney General for answer on
Thursday which could, if necessary be used as pegs for
statements on the Select Committee's Report. It was
suggested that the Question might be in the form:

"To ask the Prime Minister/Secretary of State for
Defence/Attorney General if they have vet reccived a
copy of the Report of the Select Committee on Defence
on Westland."

If it was decided not to use the pegs, the question could be
answered with a simple "Yes".

Ministers thought it inevitable that the Prime Minister
would be asked about the Westland Report at Oral Questions.
Indeed, it would be worth ensuring that she received an
early Oral Question on this subject so that she would have a
good opportunity to give a reply, in the form she chose,
whch effectively blocked further hostile questioning. Her
Oral Answers could make clear that the Government would
reply to the Select Committee's Report in the normal way but
she wanted to take this early opportunity to reaffirm her
fullest confidence in any officials criticised in the Report
and to rule out disciplinary action. She would consider, in
the light of the oral exchanges, whether a further Written
Answer would be necessary. In any event, a Written Answer
would not be given until after 3.30 pm. On the text
attached to your minute ref. A086/2142 to the Attorney
General, the Prime Minister thought that it was much too
long. The draft should be short and to the point, dignified
and brief.

The Prime Minister did not believe that it was appropriate
for her to answer on behalf of the Attorney General for his
conduct in his capacity as a Law Officer. He should reply
himself directly through an arranged Parliamentary Question,
though she would be grateful to see the draft of the text he
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proposed to use. It would be important for the Attorney
General to avoid saying anything in his Answer which would
prompt the Select Committee to summon him as a witness. You
kindly undertook to speak to the Attorney General's office
about this.

I am sending a copy of this minute to Mr Morris (Lord Privy
Seal's office) and Mr Maclean (Chief Whip's office).

sl

N.L. WICKS

22 July 1986
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10 DOWNING STREET

From the Principal Private Secretary

Sir Robert Armstrong

Response to Select Committee on Defence Reports on Westland

Thank you for sending me a copy of your minute of today to
the Chief Whip.

I rather wonder whether a somewhat shorter treatment of the
issues might not be better, and with that thought in mind I
attach a shorter version of your draft. This, it seems to
me, answers the main points which we expect, on the basis of
press reports, to be in the Select Committee's report.
Certainly, it does not deal with such things as

Peter Kellner's allegation about Bernard Ingham. But I
doubt whether that needs to be answered in a Parliamentary
Question.

I have not shown the Prime Minister either your draft or my
version attached. I suggest that we show her the version
which has been agreed interdepartmentally.

I ought also to record this morning's discussion of the
Prime Minister's meeting with the business managers. The
possibility of an arranged PQ on the lines of your draft was
mentioned then. But it was agreed that the vehicle for the
Government's first response to the Defence Select
Committee's report should be decided when a draft text was
available.

I am copying this minute and enclosure to Murdo Maclean
(Chief Whip's Office)

(N. L. WICKS)
21 July 1986
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DRAFT QUESTION

To ask the Prime Minister, whether she will make a statement
on the implications for the Government of the premature
disclosure of part of the contents of forthcoming reports from

the Select Committee on Defence.

DRAFT ANSWER

i The leaks of the Select Committee's Reports

1 The Government will respond to the Committee's Reports in

A r
due course in the usual way; but in view of the advance \

disclosures and their references ié?particular individuals
there are a number of points in the Report which should be

answered immediately.

II. The Attorney General

2. The Report states that [say whatever it does sayl.

3 If the Select Committee had sought the views of the
Attorney General, he would have been able to point out that
this conclusion does not follow from the premise. The fact
was that since the testimony of the official in guestion would
be vital to any inquiry into the circumstances of the
disclosure, and the official's readiness to co-operate fully
in the inquiry would unquestionably be likely to be affected
by the possibility that an admission could lead to a
prosecution, the Attorney General judged it right that that
possible impediment to full co-operation in the inquiry should
be removed. It was only after reading the report of the
inquiry that my Rt. Hon. and Learned Friend concluded that on
the facts as disclosed in the inquiry there could have been no

question of proceeding against the official concerned.
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IITI. Disciplinary Action

4, The Select Committee say that they find extraordinary the
fact that no disciplinary action was taken against any of the
officials concerned in the disclosure of the Solicitor
General's letter. My statement of 23 January and my speech of
27 January last, and various answers given to Parliamentary
Questions and the evidence given by the Head of the Home Civil
Service to the Select Committee, explained fully why those
responsible judged that disciplinary action was not warranted.
That remains the position. It was not my responsibility to
take that decision, but I consider it to have been an entirely
reasonable one. I have the fullest confidence in the
officials concerned in No.l0 Downing Street and the Cabinet
Office and so, I understand, does my Rt. Hon. Friend the
Secretary of State for Trade and Industry, in the officials

concerned, in his Department.

IV. The Head of the Home Civil Service

B The Committee suggest that this case may demonstrate one
of the conflicts of interest which the Treasury and Civil

Service Committee identified when they recommended that the

posts of Secretary of the Cabinet and Head of the Home Civil

Service should not be held by the same individual. On the
general question of combining the positions of Secretary of
the Cabinet and Head of the Home Civil Service I have nothing
to add to the Government's response to the Seventh Report of
the Treasury and Civil Service Committee, which is being

presented today as Cmnd. 9841.

5% The Committee suggest that in this case the Head of the
Civil Service failed to give civil servants the lead for which
they were entitled to look to him. Once again, I cannot
accept the Committee's view. Following discussions with my
Rt. Hon. and Learned Friend the Attorney General, it was the
Head of the Civil Service who proposed to me that there should
be an inquiry. He conducted that inquiry himself, with the

assistance of a colleague from the Cabinet Office (Management
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and Personnel Office), and reported fully to me and to my Rt.
Hon. and Learned Friend the Attorney General on the disclosure
and the circumstances in which it came to be made. Since it
would have been unfair for the people concerned to be
subjected to a second process of inquiry into the same events,
he offered himself to give evidence to the Select Committee on
Defence, and answered their questions fully and fairly at two
sessions lasting altogether for nearly five hours. Far from
that being a failure of leadership, I believe most Rt. Hon.

and Hon. Members will share my“view that it demonstrated the

exercise of leadership with a high degree of responsibility

and integrity.
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10 DOWNING STREET

From the Principal Private Secretary

SIR ROBERT ARMSTRONG

RESPONSE TO SELECT COMMITTEE ON DEFENCE REPORTS ON WESTLAND

Further to my earlier minute of today, can I suggest that
the draft Question might read as follows:-

"To ask the Prime Minister if she will make a statement
on the Reports of the Select Committee on Defence on
Westland plc."

Of course, this assumes that the information would be
provided through Parliamentary answer, and this has not yet
been decided.

I also suggest that the first paragraph of the draft answer
should be amended to read as follows:-

"]. The Government will respond to the Committee's
Reports in due course in the usual way; but in view
of a number of references in the Report to particular
individuals there are a number of points which should
be answered immediately."”

Finally, I think that the words ".... most Rt. Hon. and Hon.
Members will share my view ...." could be omitted with
advantage from the last sentence of the draft.

N.L. Wicks
21 July 1986
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